AFFIDAVIT
| the undersigned,
BERNADINE VAN WYK

Identity Number; 651016 0075 083
Make oath and state as follows:

¥ | am a major female bookkeeper. | am presently residing at 41 — 10" Street

Alberton North Street Alberton.

2. | am presently employed as a bookkeeper for Ronald Bobroff & Partners Inc of 37
Ashford Road Rosebank Johannesburg. | have been in the employ of Ronald

Bobroff & Partners Inc since 16 September 2010.

3 | have been a legal bookkeeper for the past 25 years, both in full-time employ and

in a freelance capacity.

4, | make this affidavit as a “whistle blower" as defined in the Protected Disclosures

ASs ﬁ/ Ri\

Act No 26 of 2000.
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The criminal conduct which | withessed at the practice of Ronald Bobroff & Partners

Inc ("“RBP” or “the firm") was reported by me to the relevant authorities on 15 May

2012.

Subsequently it became apparent to Ronald Bobroff that someone in the firm had
disclosed their wrongdoing and he started a witch hunt, which has included two
rounds of compulsory polygraph testing for his “staff’ and culminated in my
suspension on 27 September 2012 and a subsequent disciplinary hearing on

spurious grounds on 17 October 2012.

The manifold, serious and ongoing breaches by Ronald and Darren Bobroff of the
provisions of the Attorneys Act, VAT Act, Companies Act and Income Tax Act,
specifically in relation to proper bookkeeping and accounting to clients are manifest

and will be readily apparent to any independent forensic investigator.

Ronald Bobroff distracts blame from himself by suggesting that his bookkeepers are
at fault, when in fact he is the author of the accounting transgressions. During the
time of my employment at Ronald Bobrff & Partners it became apparent to me that
Ronald Bobrof was able to his unlawful activities by either employing very junior
bookkeepers who were unable to stand up to him or by changing bookkeepers
every 18 months to 2 years. In this way every time a complaint is raised it appda

that he has blamed his previous bookkeepers for any irregularities.
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He boasts frequently to the staff at the firm that the Law Society of the Northern
Provinces will not act against him as its Past President and current Councillor and
has even boasted to me that he has Judges who are friends of his who will make
sure that nothing happens to him. He usually made this boast after he had
purportedly met one or other Judge for lunch but the staff were never told the

names of the Judge or Judges concerned.

| anticipate that he will blame me, and his previous bookkeepers, and hence | invite

this Honourable Court to appoint a forensic auditor to ascertain the truth.

| suspect that countless clients have been robbed of their compensation from the

Road Accident Fund by the nefarious conduct of Ronald and Darren Bobroff.

| was interviewed by Ronald Bobroff in May 2010, and again in August 2010, after |

responded to an advertisement for bookkeeper on Gumtree website.

| commenced my employment with the firm on 16 September 2010,
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| replaced the previous bookkeeper, Christy de Beer.

When | joined the firm, Natasha Da Costa was the internal bookkeeper, and she
was assisted by a young clerk, Chantelle Jansen, who left in January 2011.
Natasha Da Costa was and still is reflected on the letterhead of the firm as the
“internal accountant” even though she has no bookkeeping or accounting

qualifications.

The financial year-end of the firm is 30 September, and when | joined the financial
records of the firm were in an absolute mess. Ronald Bobroff attributed this to the
incompetence of previous bookkeepers. Some of the names that he mentioned
were Christy de Beer, Delia Guthrie and Cathy Rodel. | did not know any of these

ladies and accepted what | was told.

The creditors were in arrears, particularly expert witnesses employed by the firm to

examine and report on injuries sustained by clients of the firm in road accidents.

Ronald Bobroff & Partners (RBP) is a personal injury practice and most clients are

examined by one of a small group of expert medical practitioners who are retained

K
I

by RBP to prepare medico-legal reports.



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Page 5 of 31

TE538

| discovered that advocates at the Johannesburg Bar briefed by RBP were also in

arrears.

In addition, the costs consultant employed by the firm to prepare its bills, Legal
Billing Solutions (Pty) Ltd, owned by Mr Jerry Joubert, was owed approximately

R800,000.

| ascertained from the records of the firm that RBP did not pay any of the doctors or
advocates who were instructed to examine or represent the clients until settlement.
The payment was only made after the successful settlement of the client’s case; in
other words, the firm had no risk or liability to those creditors until the case was
successfully settled and the Road Accident Fund had paid the award into RBP's

trust account.

There was no proper filing system and generally | learned that creditors were paid
long after payment was due. This was particularly apparent from the fact that once
the firm received payment of the capital and costs from the Road Accident Fund,
there was no reason why the creditors on that particular matter could not or should

not be paid forthwith. It did not and still does not happen at RBP.

What was done which | found very unusual was that business cheques were drawn
for all the creditors but these were never signed. The liabilities were posted a

monies recovered as though those liabilities were going to be paid but neith

/x\_g g/ &,\b
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Ronald nor Darren Bobroff would sign the cheques. The business bank statement
runs to between and 40 and 60 pages per month because of this practice of issuing
a separate cheque for each and every expert and/or advocate. When cheques are
eventually signed and deposited, this results oftentimes in 10 or 20 cheques being

deposited into the bank account of the expert or advocate concerned.

When | raised this with Mr Ronald Bobroff and proposed that the firm move to
making payments by EFT as this was cheaper for the firm, would be less work for
the bookkeeping staff and the creditors would receive payment immediately and
would also not have to pay bank charges, he told me that | “did not understand” and

that | was to continue doing things the way he wanted them done.

The same applied to VAT and Income Tax. Typically, as soon as a matter is settled
and the RAF pays, the firm should raise a fee and account for VAT and Income

Tax. This does not happen at RBP.

Initially when | started at RBP | spent approximately the first 5 months doing
creditors reconciliations and trying to sort out the mess with the experts and the
advocates. Thereafter and especially after Chantelle Jansen left at the end of
January 2011, | also became responsible to process VAT, as well as administer the

payroll of the staff.
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| became bookkeeper for SAAPIL (the SA Association of Personal Injury Lawyers),
approximately six months after | started with RBP. Ronald Bobroff is the
chairperson of SAAPIL and it is run from his offices. It has about 70 current
members, and financially supports his travails in the courts, under the guise that it

serves the interests of personal injury lawyers.

| would mention that many of the members of SAAPIL are experts and advocates
who do work for the firm and RBP instructed me to unilaterally deduct subscriptions
from the monies owed to them and put them onto the membership list. Many of the
medical experts and advocates telephoned me about this and | informed them that
Ronald Bobroff had instructed me that they were only to be paid after this deduction
had been made and most seemed to take the view that it was a small price to pay
considering they had in most cases waited many months if not years after

settlement for payment.

During October 2010 an issue surfaced in regard to Discovery Health, particularly
for its members whose medical and hospital expenses were recovered from the

Road Accident Fund by the firm, but not paid whether in part, or at all, to Discovery.

| believe the heart of the issue between Discovery and RBP is that RBP took 40%

of the damages recovered from the RAF, and hence Discovery and the clients only

recovered 60% of the hospital and medical expenses paid by the RAF if RBP
the attorney representing the client. ¢/
,%Q{
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When the issue with Discovery arose, | was asked by Ronald Bobroff to identify all
Discovery members who had been clients of RBP over the preceeding three years
and whose claims had been finalised. Subsequently the search was extended to

five years.

Approximately 300 matters were identified, in which the firm acted for Discovery

members in actions against the RAF.

| was given a list by Ronald Bobroff of 70 cases that Discovery had furnished to him
and who according to Discovery's records were or had been clients of the firm. The
lists were matched and other than one discrepancy, the lists correlated. It was clear
to me that Discovery was not aware that 300 of its members had been clients of the

firm, and not only 70 people.

| was asked to determine when each client was paid by RBP, following recovery of

damages from the Road Accident Fund.

The particular files had been retrieved from the offsite archives. Those files had in

af

fact been closed.
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| ascertained that most of the files did not have final accounts to clients, and
evidently were in limbo even though they had been archived. There were trust
monies on the files which had not been used to settle outstanding creditors, fees
had not been debited and in some cases clients had not even been paid. It was this
state of affairs that made it clear to me that the records and the administration of the

firm was in a mess.

Darren Bobroff took the 70 files of the members who had been identified by

Discovery and he worked on them.

From my observation, the files of Steven Bezuidenhout, the third partner in the

practice, were generally up to date and properly closed off.
The same did not apply to the files to Darren Bobroff.

| should add that Ronald Bobroff handled very few matters. He was more
concerned with public relations and the various professional bodies where he

serves, such as the Law Society of the Northern Provinces and SAAPIL.

In relation to Darren Bobroff's files for Discovery members that he had worked an

(as indicated in paragraph 37 above) | discovered that:

S W
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41.1. Creditors had not been paid, including expert witnesses, counsel and even

(especially) clients;

41.2. Incorrect fees were taken, in other words more than had been due to the

firm;

41.3. Fictitious disbursements were created and deducted.

It was clear to me that Darren Bobroff worked through the 70 Discovery members'
files and manufactured false final accounts for the clients, to bring the files up to

date and to hide the incorrect accounting on the files.

| was instructed by Darren Bobroff once he had manufactured a final account for a
client to pass the relevant entries so that the ledger would correlate with the
account that was now going to be given to the client. This necessitated countless

reversals of fictitious disbursements.

| point out that it is general practice in the firm to deduct fictitious disbursements,
typically in an amount of R15 000, on which no VAT is paid, instead of a fee. The

firm benefits to the extent of R15,000, and the client's compensation is reduced

Sl

concomitantly.
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These disbursements, reflected on the clients' account, bear no relation to actual
disbursements. A standard instruction, once the Road Accident Fund paid the
capital in a matter, was from Darren Bobroff, to “Take R15,000 fo disbursements.
No VAT'. When | queried how this could be as to the best of my knowledge VAT
had to be paid on all income, | was told by Darren Bobroff that the auditor had

okayed it and | should just do as | was told.

| have never in my experience seen an attorneys' bookkeeping practice in such a
state, or conducted in this manner. Disbursements in particular were in a terrible

state.

These “disbursements” were purportedly in respect of postage and petties, but the
deductions were not warranted because, in fact, the Lawplan electronic billing and
bookkeeping system faithfully recorded disbursements such as postage, telephone
calls, photocopies, etc, and the clients were billed for those. The actual claims are
reflected on the N-TRAC system. In any event, in fact the postage and petties

seldom exceeded a few thousand Rands, and were recovered by way of the

A& M\@S

Lawplan system.
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Pippa Farraj, the Senior Professional Assistant in the practice, objected to the
practice, because it reduced the amount available for fees. She works on a 15%
commission basis, and her earnings were reduced as a result of the practice of
billing a random amount of R15,000 for disbursements at the conclusion of the

matter.

She also protested that the disbursements deducted in this manner were false and

that she would not be able to justify this to clients.

Chantelle Jansen left the practice in January 2011 after a fight with Darren Bobroff
about the non-payment of the fees of Adv Zubair Khan, a counsel at the
Johannesburg Bar who was very frequently briefed by RBP. Chantelle Jansen felt

that Adv Khan was unfairly discriminated against, hence her resignation.

Ronald and Darren Bobroff told me that Adv Khan was “making too much money”
from the practice, as he was apparently seldom required to appear in court on trial,
and often charged a day fee even though he was not required to appear in court. |
got the distinct impression that Ronald and Darren Bobroff did not like Adv Khan
because of the way they spoke about him personally and the way in which they

deliberately delayed payment to him. They did not behave in this way to the same

1

extent with any of the other experts or advocates.

/xg
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52, | understand that Adv Khan is one of the advocates belng Investigated by the
Johannesburg Bar Council for double briefing. [ belleve that the attorneys at RBP
were well aware of this practice and in particular Darren Bobroff who said to me that

the :cmly way that they could make any money was to * turn the day over more than

once".

53.  Itis falr to say that Discovery was the focus of Ronald Bobroff's attention during the
whole of 2011, following & formal complaint agalnst Darren and Ronald Brobroff to
the Law Soclety of the Narthern Provinces by Jennifer and Matthew Graham, who

were Discovery members and forrer clients of the firm,

54.  In fact, five matters had been Identified by George van Niekerk, of Edward Nathan
Sonnenbergs, who was representing Jennifer and Matthew Graham and |

unc{aratand ather former clients of RBP.
55.  Van Niekerk had arranged to inspect these flles at the practice.

56.  Rachelle Stein, Ronald Bobroff's personal assistant, put together the five files. The

file hotes in the files evidencing time spent on various attendances were fabricated

o

e2~0CT-2012 21:19 From: 811 786 3111 iD: Pase:PA1  R=04%

on Darrer: Bobroff's laptop by Darren with Rochelle Stein.
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All the financial information was taken from the files. Two control files with

everything were retained, but the sanitised version was presented to Van Niekerk.

Those control files are kept at Ronald Bobroff's home. Rachelle told me that

Ronald Bobroff had told her that he was going to keep them in his safe at home.

The instructions that the staff were given including myself relating to the visit of Van
Niekerk to the offices of RBP were particularly surprising. Ronald Bobroff instructed
one of the driver's to remove light bulbs in the Boardroom where Van Niekerk would
be seated so as to reduce the amount of light. The number of chairs in the room
was also reduced and we were all told that we were not to talk to Van Niekerk.
Ronald Bobroff told us that he intended to make it as unpleasant for Van Niekerk as

he could so he would not spend too much time looking at the files.

In November 2011, the 24 councillors of the Law Society of the Northern Provinces

were provided with copies of the following documents in respect of those five files:
60.1. The final account to the client;

60.2. The invoices of the expert withesses;
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60.3. One fees mandate — the clients signed more than one but he chose which

one to include in each pack;
60.4. Proof of payment to creditors on the particular file;
60.5. A breakdown of all the disbursements in the file;

60.6. The Lawplan ledgers (this was only made available to some of the
councillors) which provide a contemporaneous electronic record of the time
recorded to the file as well as the expenses incurred and disbursed in each

matter,

| recall that 24 packs were prepared for the councillors, but not everyone got the
same information. These packs were sent by DHL or delivered by hand to the
Councillors individually and as | understand it “behind the back" of the

administration of the Law Society.

Juanne De La Guerre is another client of the practice. Her matter was settled in 30

April 2009.

She sued Ronald Bobroff for overreaching and her matter was reported in the
Sunday Times newspaper on 30 October 2011. The Monday after the article
appeared, Adv Zubair Khan, who acted for de la Guerre on instruction from R

was paid an amount of R24,000 which had been due to him until then.

5
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Adv Khan had not been paid the full amount which RBP had recovered on its party

and party bill of costs from the Road Accident Fund in that case.

Darren Bobroff asked me on that Monday in October 2011 to issue a cheque in Adv
Khan's favour for R24,000 and to backdate the cheque. He asked me to tell Adv

Khan that the first cheque to him had gone stale. Of course, this was a lie.

| refused to carry out his instruction and the cheque was duly issued and dated the
same day. After the payment was made to Adv Khan he telephoned me and
queried the payment because he had been told he should write off this amount as

RBP had not made a full recovery.

| also saw the De La Guerre file and noticed the client's final account. It did not
contain any mention of a R24,000 cash advance allegedly to the client, which is
reflected in the general ledger. The general ledger also reflects payment to L
Berman, which is not reflected on the client’s final account. | believe that L Berman

is in fact Lisa Berman Bobroff, the wife of Darren Bobroff.

In all the 300 Discovery members' files of RBP, new final accounts to the clients
were created. | heard that the clients that were still in South Africa or had not died

were contacted and issued with final accounts so as to prevent any complaints.

Sl



69.

70,

71.

T2,

Page 17 of 31

T

This exercise was conducted only in respect of the 300 Discovery clients and not in
respect of other clients of the firm. There is no reason to believe that the files of
other clients of the firm are not similarly in disarray, or that clients in other matters
have not similarly been deprived of their rightful payouts from the RAF or been

billed for expenses that RBP did not in fact incur.

Ronald Bobroff invited the Discovery clients one by one to meet with him. | gather
that he explained to them that in the process of “cleaning up” the practice it was
discovered that these clients had been short paid. They were issued with new
cheques in various amounts, and in exchange invited to lodge a complaint against
Discovery for its insistence on recovering hospital and medical expenses paid to the

clients by the Road Accident Fund.

| was perturbed by the manner in which Ronald and Darren Bobroff conducted the
accounting of the practice. The general unhappiness of the staff because of the

pressure we were all under resulted in my tendering my resignation in January

2012.

Ronald Bobroff persuaded me to withdraw it and gave me a salary increase. He
told me that everything would be okay and that it was all just a misunderstanding

and that he would have it sorted out very soon.

(S
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The misconduct continued however, and reached a new zenith with the VAT issue
in relation to the Graham file, in May 2012. In the same month, three members of

the professional staff resigned.

It was triggered when Van Niekerk called for proof in the course of the LSNP
disciplinary enquiry that VAT had indeed been raised and paid on the fee in the

Graham matter.

Ronald Bobroff instructed me to pay VAT to SARS, which he said had not been
paid as a result of an oversight by Chantelle Jansen. He said the narrative on the
ledger account should have read “interim fee" and “paid VAT". In fact, as appears
from the accounting records of the firm, the fee téken by the practice (although not

formally raised) had been paid in full into a Bidvest account.

| do not know whose account the Bidvest account is, but | do know that the money

was not returned from the Bidvest account to the practice's business account.

| refused to post the VAT when Ronald Bobroff insisted because posting VAT
without a corresponding fee and without a corresponding trust to business transfer
would have resulted in the books of the firm not balancing. | informed Ronald
Bobroff of this and explained that that was why it could not be done without the

money first coming back into the trust account.

./&-\5'
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He wanted me to do it by way of a journal entry. | pointed out to him that money
had to be brought back from the Bidvest account into the trust account before a fee

could be passed and VAT could be paid.

He was very upset with me for refusing to carry out his instruction and told me that |
was “stupid” and that his auditor Andre van der Merwe would explain to me how it
was to be done. When the auditor came to the office and this issue was raised, he

agreed that it could not be done the way Ronald Bobroff wanted it to be done.

To the best of my knowledge he has still not passed a fee in the Graham matter and

VAT has still not been paid on that fee.

Until March 2011 money received from the Road Accident Fund was held in the
general trust account. | noticed that fees were seldom debited even after matters

were finalised.

| also noticed that frequently cash cheques or fictitious disbursements were issued

to enable the partners to take money out of the practice.

During the latter part of 2011 Ronald Bobroff had a fight with Natasha da Costa and
she came to speak to me. She was very upset and said that Ronald had

threatened to fire her. She told me that if Ronald fired her, she would reveal what

she knew. | asked her what she was talking about and she then told me abpu

client by the name of F Pombo.
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Natasha gave me a copy of a report that had been prepared by Christy de Beer for
the auditor Andre van der Merwe in which she had set out how Mr F Pombo had
been defrauded by Darren Bobroff who had deposited the money for Mr F Pombo
into his own personal bank account. | read the report, a copy of which is annexed
hereto marked “ BW 1" which shocked me. Natasha also told me that she had the
original Pombo cheque which besides showing that Darren Bobroff had deposited
Mr Pombo's money into his own (Darren’s) account also showed that he had forged
Ronald Bobroff's signature. Natasha told me that she was keeping that cheque as
insurance against him harming her or trying to implicate her in anything that he and

Darren had done.

Besides annexure BW1 which was the report of Christy, her report also included:

86.1 Copies of various uncrossed cheques as follows:

86.1.1 E Robinson cheque number 114486 in the sum of R42 000.00 (a

copy of which is marked "A" on annexure BW2 hereto).

86.1.2 Cash cheque number 113300 in the sum of R55 000.00 (a copy of

which is marked "B" on annexure BW2 hereto).
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86.1.3 J Kingsbury cheque number 11213 in the sum of R157 280,00 (a

copy of which is marked “C" on annexure BW3 hereto).

86.1.4 A Lubbe cheque number 112256 in the sum of R11 410.05 ((a copy

of which is marked “D" on annexure BW2 hereto).

86.1.5 F Pombo cheque number 114499 in the sum of R133 599.04 (a
copy of which is marked “E” on annexure BW3 hereto) — cancelled

cheque.

86.1.6 CP Ndlovu cheque number 114475 in the sum of R1 000.00 (a copy

of which is marked “F" on annexure BW4 hereto).

86.1.7 GJ Chaitowitz cheque number 114459 in the sum of R30 000.00 (a

copy of which is marked “G" on annexure BW4 hereto).

86.1.8 J Kingsbury cheque number 113167 in the sum of R371 281.52 (a

copy of which is marked “"H" on annexure BW4 hereto).

87.2 A letter from the Standard Bank enclosing both sides of cheque 115905 in
the sum of R115 599.04 in favour of F Pombo a copy of which is annexed

hereto marked BWS5.1 and BW5.2 respectively.

&
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87.3 An email from Maria Radebe at the Standard Bank confirming that the F
Pombo cheque was deposited into the account of D Bobroff. (a copy of

which is annexed hereto marked BW6).

During March 2011, | was instructed to open a trust ledger suspense account with
number 11521 and Ronald Bobroff assured me that he had the approval from the

auditor to do this.

All fees had to be channelled to this account, specifically arising from four matters
which had been settled a long time ago. This was to be the way that the old
accounts could be squared off and deleted but the money which was in them could

still be accessed.

| enquired from Ronald Bobroff why he was not putting through the fees and paying
the VAT and he told me that because “/ am not getting any benefit. The interest

goes to the Law Society” he had no obligation to put through the fees or pay the

/5.(3'
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89. That particular ledger account always had between R156 million and R35 million In it.

80.  From time to time fees were debited to account 11521 and money was taken from

account 11521 to business.

81.  Trust cheques were only ever used to pay clients and medical aid schemes (Steven
Eezluldenhout always ensured that Discovery and medical alds who were due a
refund were paid — the same was not true for Ronald and Darren Bobroff). All other

payments were made by way of business cheques for example seitling experts,

advocates, etc.

92, As a result every month the business bank ﬁtatement ran fo between 40 and 60
pages, with a myriad of payments which, | suspect, was deliberately designed to

obfuscate surreptitious payments cashed in by the Bobroffs,

83. | noticed that these business cheques were not crossed, and thus could be cashed
in at the bank duly endorsed. Whenever the bank statements came to me to do the
bank reconcillation every month, Natasha made sure that the paid cheques were

taken away so it was only on the odd occasion that | in fact had an opportunity to

see the vouchers.

S b
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Ronald Bobroff explained that the idea with account 11521 was to stagger the
debiting of fees over a number of years, as he expected that the income of the
practice would taper off with the introduction of the Road Accident Fund

Amendment Act.
Fees were only debited from time to time when they required money to pay tax etc.

Ronald Bobroff instructed me shortly before SARS came to conduct an audit in July
2012 to manufacture VAT invoices for clients, so as to account for fees and VAT.
This related to cases that had been settled in previous financial years and VAT

periods where the books of the practice had already been closed.

When Ronald Bobroff was notified that SARS was coming to do a VAT audit, he
called in Income Tax experts and | was then told that the problem he had was that
VAT returns had been submitted to SARS but no VAT invoices were issued to

clients,

Some of the other accounting issues were:

#3

98.1. VAT was not charged on disbursements; M

o
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98.2. Money was retained in account 11521 in matters which should have been

paid to creditors or debited to fees;

98.3. Fees were taken from trust to business long after the matter had been

finalised.

SARS commenced an audit of the practice and Darren told Ronald Bobroff in my
presence that the VAT audit by SARS was causing a "big problem”. He said that
SARS had told him that there was “R98 million to be accounted for" and he was

very worried that they were going be arrested.

The biggest fraud though, as best | could tell, concerned the “Zunelle” trust account,
which is apparently used to launder money. This Zunelle account is not part of the
books of the business and | personally never had anything to do with it. The first |
heard about the Zunelle account was when Natasha told me after her fight with
Ronald Bobroff. Natasha even showed me the bank statements for this account

and | was shocked to say the least by the amount of money in that account.

| know that an amount of R40 million went from the Zunelle account to the auditor of
the firm Andre van der Merwe because Natasha told me about it and that she
thought Ronald and Darren were getting ready to leave the country and that is wh

A
S N

they were "moving the money".



102.

103.

104,

105.

106.

107.

Page 26 of 31

379

The Zunelle account purports to be a section 78 (2) (A) investment account but
there is no trust creditor in the books of the practice by the name of Zunelle or

person by the name of Zunelle who has ever been a client of the firm.

None of the money from Zunelle ever came into the business or trust accounts of
the practice and | assume that the interest that was earned on that money was kept
by Ronald and Darren Bobroff. | would mention that account 11521 has nothing
whatsoever to do with Zunelle, the money for account 11521 is in the firm's trust

account and stays there until fees are debited and then it is transferred to business.

Natasha told me that there are in fact three Zunelle accounts, two held at Investec

Bank and one at Standard Bank, all bearing the same name.

There is no client by the name of Zunelle and | am sure that the account has not

been approved in terms of the Financial Intelligence Centre Act.

| submit it is clear that the accounts had not been opened in the name of any

genuine client.

Initially SAAPIL paid the legal fees of RBP in the dispute relating to the Graha

G
A/ -

and SAAPIL is still paying the legal fees in the De La Guerre matter.
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108. The expenses are recovered from SAAPIL by Ronald Bobroff, who is SAAPIL's
president. He would pay Counsel, reclaim VAT back from SARS, and then claim

the full amount from SAAPIL.

109. | had pointed out to him that this was wrong as SAAPIL was not registered for VAT
and in fact even though | was employed by SAAPIL to do its books, it is not
registered for PAYE either. When | had raised this with Ronald Bobroff, he told me
that since SAAPIL was a voluntary organisation that did not have an income but

only donations there was no need to register for VAT or PAYE.

110. | believe that as a result of my failure to co operate in manufacturing VAT invoices,
and my unwillingness to lie to SARS during the audit, Ronald Bobroff decided that |
was the whistle blower and embarked on a campaign to make my life as difficult as
possible. He was rude to me and attempted to alienate all the staff from me by
telling them that their livelihood was jeopordized because “someone was leaking

information”. It was clear that he was talking about me.

111. Matters came to a head on 20 September 2012 when Ronald Bobroff announced
that there would now be polygraph tests. This had been threatened before but had

not actually been done.

/Z



112.

113.

114,

1135.

Page 28 of 31

| was told that | had to undergo a polygraph test and | asked what it was about and
was told that the purpose of the test was to try and find out who the leak in the
office was. | was told that the tests would take approximately half an hour per

person and that all the staff would be tested.

| was reluctant to agree to the test but was told that Natasha da Costs and Pippa
Farraj would undergo testing first. A short time thereafter (maybe five or ten
minutes later) both Natasha and Pippa came to my office to tell me that they had
now completed their tests and that it was now my turn. It was clear to me that | was
being targeted because they could not have both undergone the half hour individual

polygraph test in that short space of time.

| then told Ronald Bobroff | was not prepared to undergo the polygraph test and

things became heated. | was very upset and | left the office.

Later that day Hans Norel the Candidate Attorney of RBP delivered a letter to my
house recording Ronald Bobroff's version of what happened. | had previously
applied for and been granted leave for Friday 21 and Tuesday 25 September 2012,
(the weekend being a long weekend with Monday 24 September 2012 being a

public holiday) and the firm was closed for the Jewish holidays on 26 September

2012.
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| returned to work on Thursday 27 September 2012 and was given a letter informing
me that | had been suspended on full pay for two weeks. The reason for the
suspension was given that the practice had recently discovered that | had a
previous criminal conviction as an accessory to fraud which had been perpetrated

by my former husband.

In fact, when | was first interviewed by Ronald Bobroff in May 2010 and while the
interview was underway and it seemed to be going well, | had told him about my
conviction and he had said to me at that stage that he would get back to me if he
was interested in employing me. | did not hear from him and in fact was offered and

took another job at Fair City Hotels in Midrand.

| was working at Fair City Hotels in Midrand when Ronald Bobroff contacted me in
August 2010 to ask me whether | was interested in coming to work for him. We
corresponded for a few weeks and | went for a second interview at the end of
August 2010, was offered the position and thereafter started working for the firm on

16 September 2010.
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119. | made full disclosure of my past and it seems clear to me now that the reason that
Ronald Bobroff may well have employed me is because of my past as this is being
used as a justifiable excuse to try and terminate my employment and probably to

then have someone to blame for what he and Darren Bobroff have done.

Gl

BERNADINE YAN WYK

| certify that:

i the Deponent acknowledged to me that :

A. She knows and understands the contents of this declaration;
B. She has no objection to taking the prescribed oath;
C. She considers the prescribed oath to be binding on his conscience.

Il. the Deponent thereafter uttered the words, "I swear that the contents of this
declaration are true, so help me God".

M. the Deponent signed this declaration in my presence at the address set out
hereunder on 19" day of October 2012.

s

COMMISJIONER OF OATHS

JOHANNA GEORGINA NAUDE
KOMMISSARIS VAN EDE - EX OFFICIO
PRAKTISERENDE PROKUREUR R.5. A
VAN RIEBEECKLAAN 36
ALBERTON
TEL: 907-2730
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STATEMENT TO MR. ANDRE VAN DER MERWE

ANDRE VAN DER MERWE AND: ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants (Si4.)

Registered Accountants and Auditors |

Practice;No: 929557 E

PR - 48755 BFE

By Hand

PICIOUS T

NSACTIONS AT RONALD BOBROFE &
RS INC, '

DATE: 16/07/2009

I:am: the:senior bookkeeper and started as-an employee at Ronald Bobroff and Partners
Inc, onthe 1% of April 2009,

1 & stispiciots about sonié fransa¢tions and will state:my findings in this letier and trast
that yiu will dgthe necessary. S

L'will use one file, Mr. F Pombo (ef: $081) 4 an example.

The file was brought to me by Mr, Darrer R Bobroff to ¢heok the draft final accounit. “This
entails that I check that all the experts have been paid, according to what was recovered-on
the taked bill drawn up by out-cost consiltants. Y also have ta calciilate the disbursemients
according to our LawPlar dccounting syster ledger prititout.

I checked the totals received from the:RAF and it matohed the-totals o thie draft adcoint:
"Total Capital equalléd R4,031,789.49 dnd the Costs equalled R223,961.48. ‘

Some of the.funds, R2,500,000,00 were invested on behalf of the client in a Seition
78(2A) irivestmierit account atInvestec Bank; account tiummber being (110043175 1-500):
There wexe 3 withdrawals, the first being R220 000,00, second R2,228,926.60 and the
clostre of the investment resulted in R84;593.74 being:deposited into the Ronald Bobroff
& Partners Inc: Trust Account.

I made notes on my.arendment that the finds available from the: closure: of the investment
were:due tothe client:

The overall surplus onthe file at date of checking _(02!&712Ub9):wasn133. 599,04,

Lattach the LawPlan print-out, the draft final socount that I checked; thie taxed billand my
notes to:the.amendment for-your perogal.

Oh the 3 of July 2009, Mr. Darren R Bobroff.came to me in the affernoon and requested
that we-issue a chq to Mr. F:Pombo.for the armount oF R133 599:04 (Business .chq number
114499). He said that it must be'a cash cheque and that I shiouldn't erass "ot Bearer/of
Toonder". I followed his instruction. I gave the cheque-to him.affer receiving the
Business Cheque Requisition. He'took the cheque to Mr. Ronald Bobioff'who signed it. -

’ | /his'
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Please note that these were Trust Funds, whenyoi captiire any business debit an our
accouniting system it will result in a Trust Tfansfer—in other words taking the money:
from the Trust account'and refunding the Business account.

T'was suspicious o1 previous oécasions but this one stood Guf, becansethe finds wers
invésted in the client's name..

The cheque was not presented atthe bank and refurned to me on the 9™ of July 2009. Mr,
Darten: R Bobroff requésted ine to' baticel 11ii¥ cheque and rathersplit the-fimds. He
requested a R18,000,00 Trust Cheque and the balarice R115,599.04 45 a ¢ash cheqie
(number 115905) again with the instruction not to'the cross "or Bearer/of Toorider”, Both
cheques'were requested in Mr. F Pombo's name. ‘The Business:Cheque was presented at

Standard Barik; Rossbank on the sarite day.

I thought that this couldnlt beight. Both Mr. Ronald BobrofEand Mr. Steve 5
Beztidenhout were out of office that day, being the:9"™ of Tuly 2009. T confiorited Darren
2bout this and he adniitted fo-foritig Mr. Ronald Bobioffs sigriatire.

I'did an enquiry atthe Standard Bank Cusfomer Care, to first send me a copy of'the front

and back of the chiequie, Wheri I teceived the oopy on the 14™ ofJuly T noticed that the

signdfuie at-the back of thie chicque.didn't métch the clisrt signatuge,-

I did a-further enquiry and requested:from Standard Bank the details of the person whose
acoount-was credited. I'told them that I was suspicious; of the fransastion and even said to
them that if they can't tell me"whivse account was eredifed Hat they at leasttéll e whether
the beneficiary Mr. F Pombo's account were credited.

Onthe 15" of July; Ms Maria Radebe phoned mé to conifivii that the fundsiwete not
eredited toMr: F Pombo's account: It was deposited into M. D Boboffs, account, -

-I_askfls'd_ herto-send frie theé:details via e-mail. Please find 4 copy of thise-mail attached.
She also told me in her e-mail-fo phone: otr Banle: manager; Mr, Gordon Millar:

While.I was ori the phonig with Ms Maria Radebe, Pippa Farraj was.in.my office and she
saw the notes I made on the copy of the:chieque. She requestedithe file.and ws not happy
about the findings. She said that'we must inform M. Bezuidenhout.

‘We spoke to Mt. Beziiidentisiit and he said that he vas uraware ofthe transaction as he:
Wwas.not here-and will:contact Mr. Bobroff difing lunchtirie;

Mr. Gordon Millar phone me and said that he has spoken: to VIr, Ronald Bobroff arid
everything is above board anid thiat he is aware of this cheque, _

Later that afternoon Mr. Bobroff phoned e and-tried to explain what had happened.

/k% ‘
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Herewith my statement to the conversation between Vi B Bobroff and :imyself oxi fhie
15™ of July 2009:

1

'I Mi: Ronald Bobroff told me that I don't have:to worry "this.is something that all three-of

us dofrom time-to time", "maybe once or fivice a yedr for sorme holiday morey™

T told Kitn that'T was riot happy-atiout these types of transactions and that ] refuseto issue
any more-cash clieques fiom client's files.

He tried to justify it by sayirig that theyr would increéase the foé on the finial accouht:and
state the cortect atiioutb that was-paid fo the client =this will be 4 "fictitious enfry". Qn.
ovir-boaks it will:show that the money was given to the client:

I'said t6 him that it Wasiot right'and it goes gainst evetything 'stand for aud my morals
will not allow mie to-accept this.

He said thatt he knows it's:wrong and that T "should think about atiotherway of doing it",
My teply on this was that I won't-and that I don't want anything to do with it,

He tried to explain himself for almost-an hour; between 14:00 and 15:03.

I eventuallysdid to him that I could never understaud why people who practice Law:do
these types of things and fhat it upsets:me very much and that T haven't heen sleeping well
for almost two weeks, ;

He said that I "mustnokworiy about it" and that T "rrust forget:about it".

He said that he was'very impressed that picked itup and that1 was.doing'my job, but
upset that ] itivolved VS, Fariaj. Itold hir that she was in iy office when.I received the
call from thebank and that she saw me making my nofes. She aiso looked through the
ﬂlE‘. :

He.asked me if anybady else krows about it and that the Senior Bookkeeper always.
knows abaut everything but we shiouldn't disclose this information-to anyone. He said that.
T'vé "put themi in-a difficult:situation with Pippa”. He askedif she knew about aiiy othier
chiequesiand I said "No™. I also'told Him ﬂxéﬂhbb'qdy else knows, butin faetmy other
bookkeeper-clleagye; Ms, Nafascha da Costa knows about everything, she in any event
had suspicions for a while but keptthisto herself;

I had fo speslcto somebiady, I had t6 asleadvics :and confide in somebody — I chose her

- because:she is also.one of the biookkeepers and T respecther: opinion,.

Shie:was very upset and shocked, thatthere was nowin fact prcef:

‘The conversation ended with him saying that they look aftertheir boolkeepers and reward
them at the end of the year. "He.doesn't know of anybody that says "No' to-a'bit-ofcash®,

" ‘That was'the end of the conversation.
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There are.othér 64sh chiéques that Tam suspectingand T trist that you-will follow the
corréct:procedures and do an investigation in this regard:

Please: let me know if there is driything fatT can.dg to assist you,

-éﬁﬁst}t dEHesr
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INTEREST EARNED. ON INVESTMENT .
TOTAL DISBURSENMENTS As PERTAWPLAN' -

1 Dr5.. Mériteith, Nay
2. Brs. Matlsnnn, Scott & Tu‘r.ﬂaa
3 AV, Zidel
4 Dr. Read
‘5 Dr. Shevel
6§ Dr. Marus
7 | Hattingh.
‘8 Bevvan Zy|
8 Legal Billing Systems
. 10 AM Kellerman
" 11 Adv. H Constantinides
12 Ivan:Kramer
13 Dr. Lewer-Alleri
14 A Grasff
15 J Kingsbtry
FEES ~

VAT @14% f
Total paid ta cllent
18/07i2007

10/ 0/2007

28/02/2008
22/09/2008 *

30/10/2008
—7, e

" SURPLUS AVAILABLE

less: -Closure of InVéstment s

Avaiiable a5 a Final Fea

B

el B s B b B B R e B s B v e e s B e e

R 184,000.60
R 55,365.66
R.
R

i

220,000,00
2,024,315.02

.

" 43634.50.

1 1;?2(.1 iy
7.410.00
6,612.00

25.200.00
8, Bbd .00,
1 El 354 &1
13 534303
2,166.00

* '8,208.00
6;840.00-

10i195.20

371:281.52

875.34443;

122,864.08

2,513,670.64

ﬂfﬂ.?fff‘-yq

per LawPlan (arid-due fo the client)

£ G

7.,

*

, ’/&3'

394,571,860
126,510.98
3/637.217.89.
97,450.50
33,520.34:
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PERCENTAGE CONTINGENCY Fiii AGREEMENT

" Entered into by-and between
RONALD BOBROFE &PARTNERS INC.

)é':"' & ”/.-_/.an'ﬂd{.a
4

Yo have faguested us to nter fnfo a contingency percentade fag agreement with you with respéct to
your personal ijiry claim. “We are prepared to do £o mﬁé%ﬁi»ﬂnﬁhghgsiar

L.

" 'We will retain, in zespect of oty fees firespective of the amotint of worlk done i your matter, 30%

phis VAT of any monies récavered on yn'ﬂr"hnhl’ﬁ' We. shilll"ﬁﬂ‘y?ihdm all disbiirsements incirred
Ain your mattér as-charged-fo s by any permié who have rendgred any service in fgspect of yoiir-
claim as well as apydisburdeineitts: with xespéct-fo our practite and ywhich vttt ishuile Bt ot be
‘Himifed fo Bixes, photocopying; -telephbné charges, courier, services, transpoit aad travelling chists,
‘photograplis' and any offie- constmable; ot service Teasotigbly required with, respect to -fhe
‘proseciition ofyour clafr.

. All disbusetents incurred will bear inferest-at fie prime overdraft xate charged by fhe Standard

Banik of Soufl Afiica limited fom. time-to Hine plos an additional 3% fhereor. This inferest will
accrue fom the date the disbursement Is-fncvirted. If you fhe clent pay for fhe disbursements as
and when flieyare incurred sio fnferest will be leviet.

‘We will récover any party and party costs (fhoge fees and disbrirsements:for which flie defendant:

might be xequired to pag) wﬁiﬁm.‘ig_'uiﬁa zégeived fiom the Deféndant and b hiaye explained 't

you ihat & very Iimited récovery.is usnally made. The smoiiit tétovered will be-pdid to you i

addition fo the nett residué which remans ot 6 fhe fimds restivered.on your beidlf dnd after out

fee of. 30% of the success:xesult plos VAT fhergon. as well &5 all disbursemerits Have been paid:

For Mustrafive purposes the ancmmﬁugwould‘ba as :Eﬂluws -

3.1 Damagss sicovered iniosdh and kind 50-000.00Tess 30% e (R301000.00), Jess 14%‘%1
(R4200.00), xafivus disbiserients mmaofmzﬁnu 0p =it fesidue of R53 500.00. Party-
énd pitly fees and dishursements recoversd eg, K17 000.00. “This améint added to the net
rasiiiﬁa csfxﬁa smu‘pn =3;m 300.00 tphi'mtﬁayoum *srau. Ewe baw “aemrequmiw

duq 'b? us 1'31 terms ufﬁv#-mﬂercahngs Wm aIsm."ba Hﬁdﬁqtg& from any residue. dre fo- ;ym
‘before payment: t0 you of any:monies whatsosver:

4. Tnthe eventof

41  Yourterdihating ourmandate i any time for any reason; or

42  Amy Court or professional Body or any offiet aufhorised person or body not
| recoguising i contingency'peroentags agreemieily

43 Your mﬁuaﬁhg youself in. st & tnanner With ras:pect to. oui' handling of
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| | fu (4

o fées caloulated i sdcordance with our dttomey anl (et fee funidate/(s) signed
by youin térifs of which ot fées:are based on 4 rafe per horit in terms of tinie spent.
We:undérfake your instruttions on.a pontingency basis L6, Mo winno fee ﬁuhjént-’tn:

5.1 Your malking fll and complets. disslasnre of sny: ficls or cirdiimstances matérial to
yotitclaiminclnding yovr medical history and empldment records:ste:;

52 Your following, our reasonable recommendations with yespect 1o fhe handling and
gefflement of yout claim;

5.3 Ourniggdatenotbeing-fepminated atany time.

6.1 Tnthe event of conditions:4 or 5 comirig-fnfo-foroe; Youwill be labléfor om:fees and.
disbijtserents in'terms of our Attorney and, tlient £6¢ Jgresment/(s) ¥ilhi your and.

" any coiitingency provisions will fall dtay.

62 Tnsofii a8 you may dispute. our declinirig "_tg represent you firther on-thé basis of
your having Hreached corifitions 4-or 5 above, yow are entitled on writteii request fo
s by zegistered mail to réqiisst fhat the dispute be referred for determinativti fo the
Chairperion of-the MVA. Stafiding Committee bfthe Tiaw Sotiely of South Afifes,

63 To fhe extet thak the suocessfil resilt obfained dn my matfer mclides an
Undertalifig by the Deferidaiit o provide firice tnedical ot pilier services frcluding
prosthesis ot mofifications to Vehicles .or dwéllings or carsgivérs etc. you. shall be
entifled:to sifher levy, thie agtesd percentige cuntingency it on.ihe. capitilised, vilne
of all benefits to be finishetl in ferms. of the Undertaling or i youx sole diseietion fo
charge 1ié-for; all time: expénded by your offié and yourself With respect to #ll work
dons felating fo the gquantifidation, proof, recovery ar aty ofher henefit of the
semces or, gomis to ‘ﬁeprbvided mtﬂuns bfﬂ:a'Undﬂrtalﬁﬁg. ;

of 'E&qn' staff” ’mﬂ; ‘re&mect to sy ﬂm;_igg:-s I mdy auffer asa Ieanf_lt of any inténtishal Q;ﬁ
negligent ackof cmission, which miay' ccour in the cplidust of any wark on my behalf; o the.
extent: that he atount of such clafin/(s) cumulafively exceeds e Hisarace bensfits n frce
with respiect o the practice efther at fhe fime fhemegligenive fook place oraf the time the clain
i sttt ds whishever is the Tésser. Tor plafii Bnglish #t means that # anyone inyour pragtize
is in anyway nepligent and as'a result of that I snffér 4.logs, I will Téceive at no sitance cost
tosite the benefit of Whateter Professiinial Tndemsiity Tosurancethe pisctive lias in foree dind is
ayailable to satisfy claims atthe tiiris my clzim i tiade by way o simiibns heing secved.

This contingendy deretment will alo be sibject to fhe effilcal rules, anid gidelines ofﬂlaI.ﬂ.w

Eupq,ety of the Nprthern Provinces.
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AL NO WINNO HERY MANDATE,  muswo,_F28/

T\We, the tindersigred

d6 hefeby nominate, constitute and

“homiinets

~with powerofSubstitation, to bemyloni Tawful Attorey (&) inmy\our narie, place and stead, withregard fo all ork they

mgxdq:fé;gﬁqg‘to,mvgsﬁggﬂbmmdmssga_u&qmofap"muﬁal:'_:;i _.-ﬁme,ﬁip;a_l:u,agljgengﬁaqﬁbg-onmybaﬁalfagdmao-

-4l {hings you conaiﬂﬁtfa’éﬁunablgnenéskwi‘ncpmﬁﬂﬁﬂwhﬁmSnlﬁéﬁén?éﬁﬁﬁiincluﬂinghiﬁziﬁtlimifeﬂ-fﬂ

‘the attendances téferted to in Section 7 ereof with power substitrtion in sy nare:

Yo have ddvisgd methat ; ;

1. Your . doesmot offér itsiservices on the High or Magistrate's Compfagft, .

2. ¥ou chatge exclustveliy-for time spent 6yixy Hehalf:at fhe rate of F1000,00. per hoir withrespect to. sy work of
whatspevernature dofe wmr'behgéiﬁ: o _ ¢

3, Similadly fomeédisdl doctors “you. contiact out” of sny of the aliové courbfarifiz. .

4, The proposed fee rate of R1000,00 vt exclusive. charged by yGiit practics is mnr"g.qqqg'gnsﬁcrﬂ:mibﬁmfﬁemghoﬁ
Magistrate Cotrct taritf and that T could obkain fhe services of offier attomeys who might charge léss, _

5, You regird yourselves as experis:and specialists n;medicn-legal practice: and are ot preparéd fo secept instrugtion

. frojtime on any other besls than as sétontherefn. - ¥ , .

6. Vo five fortheradviged merthat there is'¢ difference between “parly aud pady costs™ and “alforney and G, client
¢Gsts". Partyand parly custsamiﬁqﬂgs'aq&ﬂis‘hum@aﬁifsxecnwm' =ﬁﬁﬁ$ﬂcﬁnﬂﬁd§iﬁ#bﬁaﬂfﬂmﬁkﬁfﬂmc@u¢
fatiff and attoxtiey and own dliént cosisrefers toyout fees chmgeitﬁm'e attheate 6£R1000,00 perhout dndihe achial
amonnt of disbursements iriirred by you. on:my behalf. Tunderstantl st T will be credited with ﬂﬁinﬂrw and party
costsrecovéredand debited witha tine charge for worlcyowhave done as well asifur all disbursements inoured oy
‘behalf; "Youhave exhibited 4 copy of the High/Magistrate's Court tarifr o fie and Thereby soniraok out of ik tariffs
with:egard-to all-féed atid disbursemerits which may becomie due by me foyon. .

7. Exattples of the type of work you, Will ¢ary out onfiy behalfand inespicct ofwhichTagresto payR10{0,00 per
hour, and wifhoiit excluding any other 1y ¢f attendance; ‘wyill inglude & o :

7.1 ‘eondnctinvestigitions. which will ficlade obtaining recordsireports fom: hospitals, medical practifioners,

employers, Workinen's Compensation Commissioner, Police, Assessors;

Aopoiat RONALD BOBROFE apdfor STEPHEN BEZUIDENHOUT andlos theit

oy £7 'cundﬁdtnﬂgpﬁ_éﬁuns' gncleﬁ'eutsa&iammtaftendi;msinn*w@mﬂslsavbﬁﬁifrﬁisappﬁa:‘ﬁt‘gfgmmmautﬁhle, L

settle my case-atyour distretion; "
73 consultwith e, medicdl and otherexperts, counsel, witnessés, dccommtants, Police;, Courtofiicials, employers,
assessors and/any ofher person-whomsoever; ' : C
‘T4 peruse; consider, settle, research, collate, any dogintent includin bt not limited t6, fitiancial staternents, books
of accounts, Votichers, medical drofhier literaturs, Iétters, pleadings; opinfons;
7.5 dictate and/or draft; memo's, letters, pleadings, nstructions, opinions did #ny other document whatéver,
7.6 attendtelephonically.on any persof. whomsoeyer; .
7.7 ravél.as youin yoikr_sole; discretion consider necessary; fncluding to meefings with witriesses; Counsel,
~ inspectioh#inloco andig comrfs; W o
7.8 ‘struct and prepare any expeits to furnish xéports, meetwith bthers; or give-evidende;
78 attendancs and/or appearancé at any Court, ingjiriry, officiel, 'ﬂizamhﬁm' else; o
8. Interest atthe priftie overdraftzate as charged by the Standard Bauik of Soufh, Aftica ftom fime to tim; plis an
‘4dditions] 3% will becorte: due i BiSbiiseRibHts intuited from the date/n whidk: the séryiceds rendefed by the
sérviceprovideramtil date of payment. Jzgspectof foes; the samedntérest will apply andwillatcrnie on each ifem
of vrork dope fn;your miatter from the date cn-which,each and every ifem of worlchas been done. ‘The houtlyzate
o£R1000,00 willncrease byl 5% pet auntim cornpémndat the nd of each corpléted period 6£1Z:monthis from
dte oFustrotion. ; o r
9. Ifforany réason Thavenotpaidyous fees and disburdements within fhites (3) years'of same becominig dus specifically
viiive any defense of presctiption, to any siich glaim which, ridly be made agaiiisime, my suctEssors. of estate by
‘yourielves in respect theréof: _ ‘
10, Tt addition o any ther powers availible-toyon L spécifically and iriévocably anthorise yous-
11. Toxreceive inmyiameall moneys ficinding capital and costs and td deduct therefrorh and pay
disbursemenits inclading Comnsel, ‘assessory, anedico-legal atcotints; ofher experts, wifnesses, Deputy
_ Sheriffs, tost consultants and any.other person who has Tendered servicesinthe cage,
2. Chargemie:stihe rate of 100,00 (sxol VAT) pér héit i zespect 6f on-profesgionsl gervices if perfomed by
Adbirin staffincinding Butiiot Tiited o file éollation and prepiaration, travel dnd ofher attendances which sh
_ esoalits gnfhe game hasls as the offter charges &t out herein. .
i3, Chaxgeiie a commencing lishursement raté 6£R2,00 (excl VAT) perpage pototopyingand-R3.50 péx
" Idlopietre fravelling VAT exclosive, escalainsion the same b as the ofher cherges herein. ]
14, Tiodge and progecits any Appesl 88 you deem appropriate, T e




R S

s A seitrlly-for:fies g dishursementy afising ott GE servites to bexendered toune T

16, Tittewocibly ceds tony attomeys Rorald Bobroff & Pattners or theitnominees my il claim against any Defendant
and or any€ost Grders inmy fypur and arsing ot Gfmy cleim., - o , -

47, Asxeeand conficmthat { ain, direcily aud péispually liable o prineipal fo fily férson who has sendered any geivice
conééibgmy claiimndluding bkt linHed to Advicstes, Medico,sgal and othet experts, Investigators cto. for fhe
Tl amount which fhey have clarged.  Theseambrnts may inchide nterest and até payable by me dicectly tothe
service provider imespeativeofwhefierorxiot all or any pirt 6Eany dishursemenfs is faxed off or dis ellowed toyou
forwhatever Teasail by Ay Gody. orpéigon fclnding &6 Fixin -mastér; fees assessment chramittee; or'Courtof Lawin
he event ofareview offakafion. Thisasreemeért doesnot p__réjsﬂlcam}'ﬁghﬁtq;ipqummjr.bfg;ﬁnlﬂﬁunpr
professtonal body o which sy service provider may belong 10 assess the service provider's fec; you arg However
specifically jiistrudtad and anfhiiised to pay such séryice pit vider ont of any fimids recovéered on gy behalf Any

suyridatmade by youin thisregacd s and shisll be dmevocibly ratified by me. »

18, Atthe conclnsiot 6f mymatter of tepminationof your misndate, yoi will furnish me with an: acconnt listing
dishursefiterits incurred: togetier with abicEoyerview of Witk done'and'an. dfipraximation of the number of hours
spént onmy matfer, Should Trequire ai ftemised acetifinting in respett of all your atféridances Tagres to e lidblefor
the fees e costconsuliant I fespect of the Hiérpatﬁﬁdnﬁfﬂ[dﬁsaﬁimﬁnt; Clostgonsultants cithér Jevy achargeof
R800,00 per hovs o' prepare the bill ofd cherge equal to 15% of the.amgunt of feeseflécted in such, detailed bill and T
‘agres fo:pibvide you with 2 déhos it of 50% of ffie.cost consnltants estimate in éspokof his-chargesforfhe
praperdtion of sithaccount, prior §p ygir being obliged to forniish sugh dccéunt.

19. Tunderstiid thetTmay withdtaw-from this fes'agreement with you either by waittennofice b you, posted by
yegistered postior delivéred by hand'znd signed for, withix a period 657 (SEVEN), dnys from the:daté oniwhich T
signed this dgreement. . : ' i

20, Sheuld Tfail to-object in writing by zegistered mail orbiriécaipted hand deliyery within 30 (THIRTY). Ay ¢fhaving
Teceived yout firal aceonnt 15 iy case: (such accousit to'xeflect dll fonies recerved. dn iy behialf, dhe fee charged by
yoivfot all yonr work togtlir with an ndication.of the:atiitpatof ime spent on my case 4iid details of dishirsements:
Toouned thefein), Tagree toabanidon any ight1iay Have o regikstyoufo prepire s detailed bill 6fGosts for taxation,
and/dr gssessment by aiy-faxing master of By fees assedsnicnt commitiee. ‘

21, TEyow iu,gnu;-aple;-qnﬁ ahsoluts discretion deem thif The doriplesity siid/or substantiilinonetary nafiid ofriy/our
claim/éladns 15 such st Saié warranits the ieed for more fhn, Gne-Aftomney; o be involved i hidlihg my claim At
sy one ims, and by zeason. of siich. fict, dedlds o ppoit such. gi{fional person/personis fo berso ivolyed, T accept

~yony decision regardimig such said appointinent and agresto Py theadditivhal ‘cost teresf, Hased on the tijs dad
other charges set ont inthis dicument.. o '

’ | 22, 'To'the extentthat any Farther authority not specified herein s Tequired byyon Thereby ratify, allow ‘and:confitin, gt;d_for

oand Ggreéto ratisy, allow and confim il 4¢tibns whicht ot gt your nomsates shall lawfilly'do or cavse tobe
D oatt, Byvictue of your representing m in/this dlaim or diiy other claiim conpected with or zélating thereto:
23.  Provided fhat-

. 231 ?ﬁmm;cumple&wnanqstaﬁd-mmmaisdummwiﬁ;:ggﬁjrdtg all maftérsrelaing to e clafi including but niot

Timited #'pie-aceident medical History; employmisitecord, destription of accident or withegard to anyrother fact

~ 'which could in-any way reflect on Jour ctedibility.

53 5 Vowacceptonr xécommendations with regard to-tiie édiduct of r seflerient of theclaif, fustructions.dre accepted in
{iifs mistler'on. 2 "nowin, 19 fee basis™ without However in any way affecting gix lisbility for dishyisgments incarred.

24. 1specifically walve and aliandon snyxif it ofacion againsting dﬂbmu};p_:.ﬁjﬁﬂnﬁihqrpfﬁ# staif with respettto
any damages Tmay suffer as a1t of any intentiosal ornegligent aotoroniission which may ocour in the conduct of
any otk on oy behilf: to the extant that ihic amount of sich claim/(s) cnniulafively cxceeds the/nsirance henefity in
“foree withi réspeot to the pracficé etfher at the fime the negligence took place.orat hs tine the claim £ fnstititeds
whichever is the lessét. ot plain Fnglish it tiéans that i anyone in your practice is il anywaynogligent and as a fesult
of thet Tsutfer aloss, Twill recéive'atno‘insurance cost tome the henehit of whateier Piofessional Tideninity Insurance:
'tﬁa‘ngﬂﬁ'du?hashﬁtdwﬁhd it available 1o satisfy claims abthe time my claim. is mede by wiy: of sumimons being,
serve -

25. Natwithstanding that may have entered fito one or moge offier fes sereemenits with you reliting 10 sy action

you.shall be enfifled 1o rely and éfiférés any of ilis agremehfsenterad:inty, dgyoumay i your sole discretion,  ‘glech

and 4he ﬁgﬁjgﬁ'nfﬁs:mntsﬁm'nntﬁomﬁtlﬂd anovation dfany other agre ernent-withyow

Sigied S JOBANNESBURG s 9 ditof g 2005 b greqencesStistidéeagned
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: e %M b " Page ] of 1

From: "Radebe, Maria M “Marla,Radebe@standard bank.co:za>
Toz ~accounts@bobroff.co.za>

Sent: 13 July. 20090110 PM

Subject: DETAILS OF PAYMENT

‘Goad day Chiistle. ot e s o )
Re:account number:002008645 R115599,04 Dated 2009.07.09 Tunds were fo ttie-accountof Bobroff
Telephong:number:880 0781

Please call Gordon Miller telephons riuinibero1 1601 4531

Thankyou
Regards

Maria s
Telephoné numberoq 3588139

Standard Bank email Disclaimer and confidentiality note

This e-mall, its attachments arid any fights attaching hefeto are, uriless the conter clegrly
indicates oftierwise, the property of _ _

Standard Bank Group Likited and its: subsitiaties, It is corifidential, private arid infetided for
only the addressee,

Should you net be the addressee and teeeive this. e-mail by ristake, Kiridly riofify: hie sender,
anid delete this e-rmail immediately, ' ' :

De notdistlose or use it in any-way: Views and. Opinioris éxpressed in this e-mriail are those of
the sender unless-cléarly stated as

those of Standard ‘Bank Group.

Standard Bank Group &accepts no liability for any loss ordamages howsoever incurred, of
suffered; resulting or arising, ;
from the-use of this email or iis attachments.

Standard Bank Group does not warrant the infegrity of this e-mail.nor that it-is free of errars,
vittses, interception or intefference,

Licensed divisions of the Standard Bank Group are authorised financial services providers in

terims of the Financial Advisory and
intermediary Services Act, No-37 of 2002 (FAIs).

For thformation about the Standard Bank Group visit our website /A

2009/07/16
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